
PCE/KRY/DMJ/dmj/mlh 
06/07/06 
#118371  

MINUTES OF THE FIFTEENTH MEETING 
 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

 
DATE:  May 24, 2006  
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Harbor Lights Room 
  Downtown Transit Center 
  909 E. Michigan Avenue 
  Milwaukee, Wisconsin 
 
 
Committee Members Present 
Frederick J. Patrie, Chairman..................................................... Director of Public Works, Kenosha County 
Sandra K. Beaupre ...........................................................................................Director, Bureau of Planning, 

Division of Transportation Investment Management, 
Wisconsin Department of Transportation 

John M. Bennett ............................................................................................ City Engineer, City of Franklin 
Daniel A. Boehm ................................................................................... Manager of Research and Planning, 
   (Representing Kenneth J. Warren) Milwaukee County Transit System 
Donna L. Brown........................................................ Systems Planning Group Manager, Southeast Region, 

Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
Larry H. Bruss............................................................ Regional Pollutant and Mobile Source Section Chief, 
   (Representing Kevin Kessler) Bureau of Air Management, 

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
Allison M. Bussler ......................................................Chief of Staff, Waukesha County Executive’s Office  
Shane Crawford ....................................................................... Director of Public Works, Walworth County 
Robert R. Dreblow.......................................................................Highway Commissioner, Ozaukee County 
Paul A. Feller ........................................................................... Director of Public Works, City of Waukesha 
Thomas M. Grisa .................................................................... Director of Public Works, City of Brookfield 
Richard M. Jones .................................................................Commissioner of Public Works, City of Racine 
William A. Kappel ................................................................. Director of Public Works, City of Wauwatosa 
Glenn M. Lampark........................................................................Director of Public Works, Racine County 
Michael M. Lemens ......................................................................Director of Engineering, City of Kenosha 
Jeffrey J. Mantes ...........................................................Commissioner of Public Works, City of Milwaukee 
Dwight E. McComb ..............................................................Planning and Program Development Engineer, 

Federal Highway Administration, 
U.S. Dept. of Transportation 

Peter T. McMullen ........................................................................................ Program and Planning Analyst, 
   (Representing Gloria L. McCutcheon) Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
Larry Moore .........................................................................................Community Partnership Coordinator, 

City of Milwaukee Housing Authority 
Kenneth M. Pesch .................................................................. Highway Commissioner, Washington County 
Jeffrey S. Polenske....................................................................................City Engineer, City of Milwaukee 
Wallace C. Thiel ......................................................................... Village Administrator, Village of Hartland 
Sandra Rusch Walton...................................................................................... Director, Injury and Violence, 

Prevention Program, City of Milwaukee Health Department 
 



- 2 - 
 
 
Staff Members and Guests Present 
Robert E. Beglinger ......................................................................Chief Transportation Engineer, SEWRPC 
Philip C. Evenson............................................................................................ Executive Director, SEWRPC 
Christopher T. Hiebert ........................................................................................ Senior Engineer, SEWRPC 
David M. Jolicoeur.............................................................................................. Senior Engineer, SEWRPC 
Karyn Rotker............................................................................................................... Staff Attorney, ACLU 
Ronald J. Rutkowski ................................................................................. Transportation Planning Director, 
 Department of Public Works, Milwaukee County 
Gretchen Schuldt...................................................................................................................................CASH 
Chris Thiel ........................................................................................................... Milwaukee Public Schools 
Kenneth R. Yunker ............................................................................................. Deputy Director, SEWRPC 
 
 
WELCOME AND ROLL CALL 
 
Chairman Patrie welcomed all of those in attendance and indicated that roll call would be accomplished 
through a sign-in roster circulated by Commission staff. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MAY 10, 2006, MEETING 
 
Chairman Patrie drew the Committee’s attention to item number 11 on page four of the May 10, 2006, 
meeting minutes which states that the Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit 
Administration had reviewed, on two previous occasions, the Commission’s efforts to comply with the 
provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Executive Order 12898, the U.S. DOT Order 
on Environmental Justice, and that both times, the Commission’s Title VI and Environmental Justice 
efforts were found to be compliant.  He then asked if there were any questions or comments on the 
minutes of the Advisory Committee’s fourteenth meeting held on May 10, 2006. There being no 
questions or comments, a motion to approve the minutes as published was made by Mr. Bennett, 
seconded by Mr. Crawford, and carried unanimously by the Committee. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION OF APPENDIX C, “EVALUATION OF THE IMPACTS 
OF THE RECOMMENDED YEAR 2035 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN ON 
MINORITY AND LOW-INCOME POPULATIONS IN SOUTHEASTERN WISCONSIN” AS 
REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE ON MAY 10, 2006 
 
Chairman Patrie noted that the Committee members had received a May 2, 2006, memorandum from the 
American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU) and the Commission staff response of May 9, 2006, and 
Committee members, by majority vote on May 10, 2006, elected to hold this meeting to discuss those 
concerns raised by the ACLU in the May 2, 2006, memorandum and the Commission staff response.  Mr. 
Yunker then noted that the ACLU transmitted to the Commission staff an additional memorandum on 
May 23, 2006, which was in response to the Commission staff’s May 9, 2006, response to the original 
May 2, 2006 ACLU memorandum.    

 
[Secretary’s Note: The May 23, 2006, ACLU memorandum is included with these 
minutes as Attachment A.] 
 

Mr. Moore made a motion that the Commission staff review the May 23, 2006, ACLU memorandum and 
revise and enhance Appendix C as may be appropriate based upon the ACLU comments.  Ms. Walton 
seconded the motion.  Mr. Patrie stated that there was motion on the floor and asked if there was any 



- 3 - 
 
comments or questions prior to the Committee voting on the issue.  The following questions were raised 
and comments made by Committee members: 

 
1. Mr. Bennett and Ms. Brown asked for clarification on the motion.  Mr. Yunker stated that he 

understood the motion to be that the Commission staff would make one more good faith effort to 
respond to the concerns raised in the ACLU memorandum of May 23, 2006, and refine and 
enhance any analyses in Appendix C which may be appropriate.  He asked Mr. Moore and Ms. 
Walton if that was the intent of their motion and they concurred that it was.   

 
2. Mr. Mantes stated that the Milwaukee Public Schools had recently transmitted correspondence to 

the Commission staff and asked if that correspondence would be part of the record.  Mr. Yunker 
responded that the correspondence Mr. Mantes is referring to is a May 16, 2006, letter from the 
Milwaukee Public Schools under the signatures of Mr. William G. Andrekopoulos, 
Superintendent of Schools, and Mr. Joseph Dannecker, Board President.  Mr. Yunker stated that 
the May 16, 2006, Milwaukee Public Schools letter and the May 22, 2006, Commission staff 
response would be attached to these minutes.  

 
[Secretary’s Note: The May 16, 2006, Milwaukee Public Schools letter to the 
Commission staff and the May 22, 2006, Commission staff response are included with 
these minutes as Attachment B.] 

 
3. Mr. Grisa stated his concern that revisiting Appendix C now, after it had already been approved 

on February 8, 2006, may lead to subsequent requests to modify Appendices or Chapters after 
they had already been approved and asked when the cycle would end if the Committee allowed 
this exception.  Mr. Yunker responded that the Commission staff envisions this as the last 
potential changes to Appendix C, and noted that the revisions to Appendix C would be included 
with these minutes. 

 
[Secretary’s Note: The revisions to Appendix C have been included with these minutes 
as Attachment C.] 

 
4. Mr. McMullen noted that the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources had prepared a letter 

regarding Appendix C and that he delivered that letter to Commission staff immediately prior to 
the meeting.  Mr. Yunker stated that the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources letter would 
be included in the minutes. 

 
[Secretary’s Note: The May 23, 2006, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
letter is included with these minutes as Attachment D. 
 

• Appendix C has been revised to include a table which identifies each air toxic 
pollutant and the amount of each pollutant generated by the transportation 
system in the year 2001 and under the regional transportation plan in the year 
2035. 

 
• The following text would be added following the first full paragraph on page 

14 of Chapter X, “Plan Implementation”:   
 

“The Cities and Counties of Milwaukee, Racine, and Kenosha are currently 
conducting a corridor alternatives analysis and environmental impact statement 
of commuter rail. The study is scheduled to be completed in early 2007, with a 
decision to be made at that time by the Cities and Counties and the recently 



- 4 - 
 

created Regional Transit Authority as to whether to proceed to preliminary 
engineering and implementation. 
 
Milwaukee County is currently conducting an alternatives analysis and 
environmental impact study of a guided street tram. The study is scheduled to 
be completed in the summer of 2006, with a decision to be made at that time as 
to whether to proceed to preliminary engineering and implementation. 
 
Study of the other potential commuter rail lines would be jointly undertaken by 
the counties through which the lines extend, in cooperation with the 
municipalities to be served by the commuter rail lines. Study efforts could be 
initiated as feasibility studies, prior to corridor studies and environmental 
impact statements.  Feasibility studies were completed for the extension of 
Chicago-based commuter rail through Kenosha and Racine Counties to the 
City of Burlington, and through Walworth County to the Village of Walworth.  
The studies were completed in the late 1990’s, and concluded that commuter 
rail extension was not feasible at that time. 
 
Study of potential guideway implementation for the express transit lines would 
be the responsibility of Milwaukee County, except the line extending between 
Milwaukee and Waukesha Counties, which would be the joint responsibility of 
Milwaukee and Waukesha Counties.” 
 

• The analysis of year 2035 regional transportation plan costs and revenues 
indicates that estimated costs are approximately in balance with estimated 
revenues given the system level estimating techniques.  The additional study of 
the year 2020 plan costs and revenues was not conducted as implementation of 
the 2020 plan was proceeding on, and even ahead of, schedule from 1995 
through 2001. ]  

 
5. Mr. Pesch stated that at the Committee’s May 10, 2006, meeting that the Committee voted to 

consider the May 2, 2006, ACLU memorandum and the May 9, 2006, Commission staff 
response.  He added that this motion includes correspondence beyond the May 9, 2006, date 
approved by the Committee and noted that the Committee was about to vote to potentially modify 
an Appendix based upon correspondence to Commission staff which the Committee members 
have not seen.  Mr. Yunker stated that the Commission staff, after reviewing the May 23, 2006, 
ACLU memorandum, would make one more effort to further enhance the analyses in Appendix 
C.  Mr. Pesch indicated that he believed Appendix C was extensive and complete, and he noted 
his disagreement with the need for additional analyses in Appendix C. 

 
6. Mr. Bennett stated that the motion does not change Appendix C as approved by the Committee, 

but may provide some enhancement of the Appendix.  He added that if this would permit the 
Committee to continue to achieve unanimity on the regional transportation plan, that he would 
vote in favor of the motion.  

 
7. Mr. Grisa stated that he appreciated the Commission staff efforts throughout the planning 

process.  He asked if this additional review and enhancement of Appendix C could negatively 
affect the completion of the plan.  Mr. Yunker responded that the Commission staff did not 
believe that it would. 

 



- 5 - 
 

8. Mr. Thiel asked to whom the May 23, 2006, ACLU memorandum was addressed.  Mr. Yunker 
responded that the May 23, 2006, memorandum was addressed to Mr. Philip C. Evenson, 
Executive Director of the Commission staff.   

 
There being no further comments or discussion regarding Appendix C, Mr. Patrie suggested that the 
Committee vote on the motion by Mr. Moore, seconded by Ms. Walton.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
DISCUSSION OF PUBLIC TRANSIT IMPLEMENTATION 
 
Chairman Patrie asked if there was any other business to come before the Committee.  Mr. Polenske 
noted a concern regarding implementation of the public transit improvements in the plan.  Mr. Mantes 
stated that historically, public transit recommendations in the plan have not achieved the same level of 
implementation as the arterial street and highway recommendations.  He stated that the City of 
Milwaukee was seeking greater emphasis in the plan regarding the need to implement public transit 
improvements.  The following questions were raised and comments made following the remarks by Mr. 
Polenske and Mr. Mantes:  
 

1. Mr. Yunker noted the Committee had this discussion before and that the plan recommends 
implementation of all elements of the plan – including public transit improvement and expansion, 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities, transportation systems management, travel demand management, 
and arterial streets and highways.  He added that the plan recommends that implementation of 
each element of the plan needs to proceed and that not one element of the plan is of higher 
priority than any other element. 

 
2. Mr. Mantes asked if the Commission staff would consider adding text emphasizing the need to 

implement each element of the plan.  Mr. Yunker responded that the Commission staff would 
propose adding such text to the recommended plan chapter. He added that the Commission staff 
intended to prepare an additional newsletter which would describe the final recommended plan, 
and the newsletter would also include the proposed discussion. 

 
3. Mr. Bennett stated that any additional text should emphasize the need for implementation of all 

elements of the plan.  Mr. Boehm concurred and asked if it would be possible to prepare an 
assessment of implementation of the each plan element on an annual basis.   Mr. Yunker 
responded that the Commission will be reviewing/reaffirming/amending the plan every four years 
and assessments of implementation of each plan element will be made at that time.  He added that 
to the extent possible, the Commission staff will assess implementation of each plan element and 
document that assessment in the Commission’s Annual Report.   

 
4. Mr. Grisa stated that this Committee is recommending a long-range plan, and ultimately, 

implementation was the responsibility of State, county, and municipal governments.  Mr. Jones 
added that criticism of plan implementation should not be directed at the Commission or 
Commission staff. 

 
5. Mr. Mantes stated that the plan guides the physical development of the Region and identifies 

transportation system needs, and the City of Milwaukee suggested that text be added emphasizing 
the need to implement recommended public transit improvement and expansion. 

 
6. Mr. Jones stated that the biggest impediment to implementing public transit improvement and 

expansion has been a lack of consistent funding from year-to-year.  Mr. Kappel noted that each 
member of this Committee has a responsibility to advocate for the implementation of all elements 
of the plan. 



- 6 - 
 
 

7. Mr. Evenson noted that he had just arrived from a “Milwaukee 7” Regional Economic 
Development Advisory Council meeting in which the Council has begun to develop its agenda.  
He stated that, while the Council is in the embryonic phase of its efforts, it is focusing on key 
infrastructure and policy essential to the maintenance and expansion of the Region’s economy, 
and it may develop into an important advocate for the improvement and expansion of public 
transit in southeast Wisconsin. 

 
8. Ms. Walton stated that public transit needs to be more important to the future of the Region than 

it has been in the past.  Mr. Yunker noted that the recommended regional transportation plan 
recommends a 100% increase in public transit as compared to a 4% increase in arterial street and 
highway lane-miles. 

 
9. Mr. Patrie asked if there were any objections to the City of Milwaukee’s request that the 

Commission staff develop additional text regarding the need to achieve implementation of all 
elements of the plan, including public transit.  There were no objections. 

 
[Secretary’s Note: The following text is proposed to be added to the first full paragraph 
on page 13 of Chapter IX, “Recommended Regional Transportation Plan”.  This text 
would also appear in the newsletter summarizing the final plan, the report summary 
chapter, and in presentations regarding the plan. 
 
“All elements of the plan are considered to be of equal priority, and each element needs 
to be fully implemented to meet existing and forecast future year 2035 transportation 
needs and to provide a comprehensive, multi-modal, balanced, high quality 
transportation system in southeastern Wisconsin. 
 

• Public Transit 
• Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities 
• Transportation Systems Management 
• Travel Demand Management 
• Arterial Streets and Highways 

• Freeways 
• Surface Arterials 

 
Over the past 30 years, significant progress was made with respect to implementation of 
previous regional plan recommendations. With respect to public transit, the overall 
improvement and expansion achieved from 58,000 bus-miles of service in 1975 to 
69,000 bus-miles of service in 2005 has been limited by reductions in service which 
have occurred during periods of economic downturns and recessions, specifically during 
the early 1980’s and the early 2000’s. For example, between 1987 and 2000, public 
transit bus-miles of service expanded from about 61,000 to 81,000 bus-miles of service, 
or about 33 percent or about 2.3 percent annually, but with the economic downturn and 
attendant State and local budget problems since 2000, bus-miles of public transit service 
have declined by about 15 percent. To fully implement the regional plan, there will be a 
need to assure that during economic downturns, progress in plan implementation, 
particularly with respect to public transit, continues, and is not eroded through service 
reductions.”] 



- 7 - 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Patrie noted that this was the last meeting of the Committee and on behalf of the Commission he 
thanked Committee members for their service.  The fifteenth meeting of the Advisory Committee on 
Regional Transportation Planning was adjourned at 9:40 a.m. on a motion by Mr. Kappel, seconded by 
Mr. Lemens, and carried unanimously by the Committee. 

 
 

Signed  
 
 
Kenneth R. Yunker 
Recording Secretary 
















































